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PETITION FOR JUDICIAL REVIEW

1. RISE St Jumes, Lonisiana Bucket Nrigade, Sierra Club, Center for Biological
Diversity, Healthy Gulf, Eurthworks, and No Waste |Louisiana (collectivoly, “Petilioncrs”)
appeal Lovisiana Depariment of Enviroamental Quality’s final decision made on Joouary 6, 2020
granling Prevéntion of Significant Detcrioration Permil PSD-LA-812 and Title Vit 70 Air
Operating Permits 3141-V0, 3142-V0, 3143-V1), 3144.V0, 3145V 0, 3146-V0, 3147-V0, 3118-
V0, 3149-V0, 31530-V0, 3151-V0, 3152-V0, 3153-V(, 3154-V0 (colleclively, “Permits”) 0 I1(;
LA JLC (“Formasa l;lastics") to construct und operate a.new chemical complex comprised of 14
separate plants (* Chemical Complex™) in SL James Parish, District 5.

2. Asdetailed below, Petitioners ask the Court to vacate LDEQ's decision 10 issue
the Permils becouse tllae decision violatcs the Louisisns Environmental Quality Act, Louisiana air

repulations, and article IX,.section 1 of the |Louisiana Constirution, as well as the olher legal

provisivns ypecilied in this Petition.
SUMMARY
3. LDEQ's decision allows a Taiwan-bascd petrochenical giant (o build  massive
new chemival complex in  predominantly African Amorican srca o SL James Pacish that fies in

(he cenler of “Cancer Alley,” a region that sirelches along (he Mississippi River from Daton
Y. 1Cg
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Rouge to New Orlcans, Cancer Alley ol i(s name as the area with the highest cancer rigk in the
nalion due to indusicial emissions and ather industrial wastes. Decades later, the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency data continucs to confirm thul the Cancer ATley name is
wartanted,

4. LDKQ grantcd Formosa Plastics pertnils (o construct 14 separate major facilitics,
including 10 chomicul plomty. The planned Chemical Complex would manyfacturo clhylene snd
propylene, primarily to produce plastics. The other four fiwililies would support these operations.
Formosa Plastics would build (his complex a mile from an clementary school in Welcome, und
less than one mile [rom the commuaity of Union in Convent, [ts massive air pollulion emissions
would vastly add to the significant cnvironmental and health burden (hat Alrican American
communities in and ncar St, James must suller—including from two new recently pemitted
methanol petrochemivul plants, and Nucor Stecl’s major cxpansion project,

§. Tormosa Plastics” aiv cmissions will alsv spread (o communilies across St. James
{farish, contributing Lo the region’s it polhition problems. The Permits would allow Formoss
Plastics to release fine purticulates and nitrogen dioxide in quantitics that exacerbale ongoing
violations of BPA's mandatory national standards in St. James Parish. And they would allow
Formoss Plugtics (o be one of the larpest industrial sources in (e stute for some of the most
dangeraus carcinagenic air pollutants, such us benzene and formaldehyde, and onc of the largest
in the nation for others, such us clhylene oxide,

6. On the day.of the public hcaring on the Permils, arcy residents, including many
members of the Petitioncr organizalions, [lled the hearing room and asked LDEQ to reject the
Permits. Avea residents Wld LDEQ that $t. James is already full of industrial focililics and
harmful pollulants, They described to LIIQ how their health is suffering [rom loxic exposures
and that ey cannot take any more, LDEQ received over 15,000 written comments urging the
agency to deny the Perntils, But LIEQ made only minor medifications fo the Permils and
gssentially granted them as proposcd,

7. LDEQ's decision violates the Clean Air Acl, and starte regulations that implcment
the Act. LDEQ granted the permil even though Formosa Plastics failed to demanstrate that its
emissions would not “causc or conlribute (0" violaions ol cerlain national standards. These
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standards, promulgated by EPA, are at the heart of the Clean Air Act, They prolest psople's
heulth by limiting the concentration i the air of sclect pollulants people breathe. In fact, LDEQ
ignored Formosa Plastics® modcling that showed (b project’s emissions exceeded some of these
standards.-LDEQ has been aware ol industry modeling showing violations of some of theso.
standards for much of (he Tast decade, bur the agency continucs to let industry build and pollate
in §t. James P'arish,

8, Asdetniled helaw, the apency also failed (o meel olher Clean Alr Acl
requirements relared to air standawds, emissions monitoring and reporting, and other
requirements.

9. This projeot will also resull in 13,6 million tons of grecnnhouse gas cmissions, as
much as three and o hull coal fired power plants cmit annually. Particularly given Loviviuna's
vulnerability to the consequences of climate change from [looding and coastal erasion to exeme
wenther, faiture to consider Formosa Plastics high contribution to 1.ouisiana’s grocnhonsc gas
emissions reflects LDEQ™s [aiture to discharge its duty as public truslec,

10,  LDEQ violated its constirutionally mandated public trustee duly by [uiling to
determing (hal it has avoided the patential and real adverse effeels of Furmos Plastic’s planned
Chemical Complex to the maxinum cxlent possible, and more braadly, by failing to provide the
“active and alfirmalive protection™ to the public that the law requires, This is purliculurly
apparent in the way LEQ permitted such large Loxiv releases, For instance, in estimating the
project’s dangerous vancer-causing efhylene oxide emissions, LDEQ allowed Formosa Pluglics
to rely on un assumed 99,9 percent emission reduction without verilyimg (hal a control device
wilh (lis leve! of etfectiveness exists. LDEQ failed o require Formosa Plastics to provide this
verification even though the complex would be vae of the very largest sources of ethylene oxide
emissions in the nation, Then LDEQ fiiled (o requive adequate monitoring to asswre compliance
wilh the limils that it set for ethylenc oxide. The cthylenc oxide emissions are just ane of many
examples of the agency taking Formosa Plaslics’ emission estimates at face value, and failing to
congider this projcet’s contribution to (he cumulative risk, stacking risk upon risk on people who
live in the area.

11, Tn violation of the law, LDEQ fuiled to discharge its responsibility to protect the
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public health, cnvironmenl, and public salety when it granted Formosa Plastics” Permits, Unlesy
the Court reverses (ki decision, the public will hear the scrious risks of harm from LDEQ's
decision. The Courl must vacate the Permits, cnjoin further action taken pursuant (o them, and
remand this mateer to LDEQ to address the violalions detuiled in this Petition.

12, Jurisdiction and venue are proper in this Court pursuant tv La, R.S, §
30:2050.21(A).

13, Tho postmarked dute for L.DEQ’s notice of its decision to issuc the Permily is
January 15, 2020, This appeal is limely pursuant to La. R.S, §§ 30:2050.21(A), 2050.23(D).

PARTIES
14.  DPctitioncrs are persons who ure aggeieved by LDIQ’s final decision to issuc the
* Permils in this malter and who may appeal the final permitting decisivn pursuant 1o La. RS, §§
30:2050,21, 30:2004(8) & (17). The Petitioners filed timely extensive written comments into the
recatd in this caso and purlicipaled in the public hearing, outlining numerous objcetions
LDEQ’s proposcd devision (o issus the Permits.

15,  RISE S, James is a faith-hased covirommental and social justice organization
fighting to protect.(he ait, Iandl, water, and the bodies of the people it S1. James Parish from harmfial
petrochemical polhation, RISE SL Jumes' members advocate for racial, social, and environmental
justice. 'The majority ol RISE St, J ames’ members veside in St. James Parish District § and Districl
4, These members are extremely concerncd about the impuels of harmbul air pollution in their
communities and as a result have been very selive in opposing Formosa Plasties’ Chemical
Complex and other proposed pelrochemical [acilities in St. James Iavish, particulswly in District §
and District 4, RISE S, Jumes' memhers are concerned that Formpsa Pluslics' cmissions would
impuir (heie health and their cnvironmenl,

16,  Louisiana Nucket Nrigade is an cnvironmental heulth and justice organization with
members who live in the shadow of Louisiuna's oil re{ineries and chemical plants, including in St.
James Parish District 5. Louisiana Bucket Brigude’s mission is 1 bring about a Louisiana that is
healiy, prosperous, and pollution-free, Louisiany Bucket Brigade uses grassioots organizing and
action (o hold the petrochemical industry and government accountable for the truc costs of
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pollution [rom petzochemical nperations and huslon (he transition Jfrom fossil fuels to clcancr forms
of energly. J.ouisiana Bucket Brigade has members who live in St. James Parish District 5 und
District 4. These members are com:emed-thut Formosa Plastics’ emissions would impair their
health and their environment,

17.  llealthy Gulf was founded in 1994 and has nﬁrc than 25,000 members and
supporters in all five Gulf States, many of whom live i Lovisiang, who are commitcd to uniting
ynd) eapowering people to proteet and reslore (he natural resources of the Gulf Region, Henlthy
Cralf has members who live in SL James Parish I)istrict.S who arc conveme aboul the impacts
that FFormosa Plastics* cmissions will have on their health and their environment.

18, Sietra Chub is one of the oldest and lurgest nationa! nonprofit cnvironmental
urganimtions inthe couhtry, wilh approximately 3.5 million members aﬁd supporlers dedicated
t cxploring, cnjoying, and protecting the wild places and resources of (he earthy practicing and
prameting the responsible use of the Karth’s ceosystoms and resources: educating and cnlisting
humanily (v proteet and restore thc‘qualily' of he ndtural and hman énvimnmcnt; und usfng tll
lawful metms L0 carey ot these objectives. Sicrra Club's Delta Chapter is active in Louisiuna,
One ol Sierea Club’s prioritios is promoting and impraving air quality. In purlicular, Sierra Club
secks to reduce the unnecessary and often harmiul uge of fossil luels in facilitics like Formosa
Plastics’ planned Chemical Complex. Sierra Club’s members and supporiers who live in fhe area
along the Mississippi River [rom Raton Rouge to Now Orleuns are-very concerned Forinosa
P'lastics’ ﬁlunned Chemical Complex and worry (hul their health and the environment will bo
negnlively impacted by the air cmissions {rom the complex. |

19.  The Cenler for Hiologicnl Diversity is a nonsprofit drgunizu.tion with
approximalely 67,000 qetive members nationwide, including members who live in Louisiana,
The Center warks through science, law, and policy 1o sceure a future for all specics, great or
small, hovering on the britk of extinction. In furtherance of these goals, the Center secks to
reducc U.S. grecnthouse gas emissions and other wir pollution Lo protect bialogical diversity, the
environment, and human health and welfare, In purswil of ifs misyion, the Center has hoen
working to slem (he environmental and public health hurms from plastics production in the Gulf

rogion and dationwide.




02/14/20?0 FRI 12403 Fax 415 217 2040 BARTHJUSTICE

| 20.  Farthworks is a nonprofil organization dedicatcd to protecling communities and
(he environment from the impacly ol ofl, gs, mining, and pelrochemicol develapment while
seeking sustainable solutions. For mone than 25 years, Earthworks has worked to advance pulicy
reforms, safegard (and and public healh, and improve corporate practices, Its leam warks with
local communitics, pariner urgunizations, public agencics, and sleeled o fficials 1o advance these
goals nationwide, including in .ouisiana Earthworks_has 212 supporters living in Louisiumy,
including int SI, James Parish.

2. No Waste Louisiuna is an alliance of local chaplers dedicated to supporting
wasle prevention policics and commuuiity practices ofreductivn, reuse, and refill, maving
Louisians away [rom landfill and proleeting our neighhorhonds, bayous, and parks from
pollulion. '

92.  LDEQ is the primary agency of (ho State of ,ouisi.ina golluurncll with
environmental protsction and regulation, La, R.S, 30:2011(A)(1). It has the authority to issue air
permily and has the affirmative obligation ta consider the cnvirenmental inypacts of its devisivn,
It lws the piower to suo und be sued and is the agency (hat made the final pormit decisions in this
matter.

LEGAY, FRAMEWORK
Nutlonal A;ﬁbiant Air Quolily Standards & Prevention of Slénmmm Deterioration

23, 'The Clean Air Act establishes & rigorous progrom for regulating new and existing
sowrces of air pollution, The National Ambicnt Aif Quality Standards (“NAAQS") that ihe 1.8,
Environmen(il meection Agency cstablish lor certain pollutants are ai the heart of the Clean Air
Act, See 42 1).8.C. § 7409, The NAAQS protect people's healh by limiting the concentralion of
each such pollulant affowabic in the smbicnl uir peaple breathe. Jd. § 7409(b). To date, the KPA
ltny promulgated NAAQS Lok six types of dir pollutents, See 40 C.F.R. pr. 50.

24, Aﬂcr selting 2 NAAQS, EPA desigaates areas as “attainment™ or “nonaliainment”
based on whelher they meet that NAAQS, Jd. § 7407(d). Altcrnatively, EPA may esignate an
arca as “unclussitiable” if the aren “permills) no detcrmination given existing datn.” Cutawha
City., N.C. v. KPA, 57LF.3d 20, 26 (D.C. Cir. 2009) (citing 42 U.S.C. § 7407(d)(1)(A))-GiE):
The KI'A treals @“urnclﬁsi (iahle” area as if it were in ullainment. See 42 U.8.C. § 7471 EPA
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has classified SL Jures Pacish as “unclassifiable/attainment” for soveral standards, including all
standards for particninte marter with a nominal diameter of Iegs (hon Ot equal to 2.5 micrometers
(“1"Mz,5") and the 1-hour standurd Lor nitcogen dioxide ("N02”). 40 C.E.R. § 81,319,

25, Inqrens designated attaimment, the Clean Alr Act requires the prevention of
significant deterloratlon of air quality Lo gunrd against the development of unhealthy air, See 42
U.8.C. §§ 74707479 ((he “PSD provisions”). The Clean Air Act defines the “significant
delerioration” thal must be prevented in two parts. First, new construction or wodilication of
large stationary sourccs of air pollulion ()ikc Formosa Plastics” planned Chemical Complex)
must not cause or contribule (o w violation of any NAAQS. Ala. Fower Co, v. Costle, 636 1,24

+323, 362 (D.C. Cir. 197Y); see 42 UK.C. § 7475(a)(3) (cslublishing preconstruction review
requirements). Sccond, to cnsure air quulity does not degrade significantly, the Act required EPA
to sct maximum allowable increnses in air poltution levels (Yincrements™), 42 U.S.C. § 7476; see
also id. § 7473 (cstablishing by statute ceriain increments), and required that now construction or
modificutivn of such sonvces of air pollution also nol cause or contribute (o a violation of any
increment, Al Power, 636 F.2d at 302; 42 U.S.C. § TA73(a)(3).

26.  The “principul mechanism® for monitoring complisnce wilh the NAAQS and “the
consumplion of allowahle increments” is the preconslruction reéview and permitting process in 42
U.S.C, § 7475. Ala. Power, 636 F.2d at 362, No new or modified *major cmitting facility” muy
be built in an artainment arca unless it receives a.preconstruction permit (i.c., PSD permit), and
any applicant for such u permit must demonstrate that new cmissions from the proposed project
“will nol cause, or contribute to," an excecdanve o any NAAQS or allowable increment
consumption. 42 U.S,C, § 7475(n)(3).

27, livery state must develop a stale implementation plan (“SIP”) for LLPA approval o
ensure that the NAAQS arc achioved and muintained. 42 U.Y.C. § 7410(2)(1)<(2), (1). State
implementation plans mus “include enlorceable emission limitations and other conlrol

Incasurcs, means, or lechiiques,., as well as schedules and timetables for compliunce™ Lo megt

" Major emitting facilitics arc those with (hepolentiul L emil at least 100 tons per year of any air
pollutont, in certain souree catezorios, or 250 tony per yeur in any olher source category. {d § 7479(1),
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(he nudional ir quality standneds, S Bernard Citizens for Fnvt'l Quality, Ine, v, Chalmelte
Reflning, L.L.C., 399 K. Supp. 2d 726, 730 (E.D. La. 2005) (intcrnal citations and quotations
omilted). All state implementalion plans must also provide mechanisms “to prevent signiticant
deterioration of air quality in each region.” 42 1).5.C. § 7471. Upon eeciving EPA approval,
“the state implementation plan becomes federally enforecahle.” St. Bernard Citizens, 399 F. F.
Supp. 2d at 730. Louisiana’s EPA~spproved SIP provisions (hat incorporale the Clean Air Acl's
PSD requirements are in Lovisiono Administrative Code at 33:111.509, See 40 C.F.R, § 52,970(¢)
(identifying EPA approved regulations in the Louisiana SI1%); see also 40 CFR. § 52.999(c) and
52.986. The Louisiana Environmental Qualily Act delines “implementation plon™ us “uny
pollulion control or other environmental regulatory plan prepared by a state agency in
compliance with the terms of the Clean Aiv Act (42 U.S.C.A. 7401 ct seq.).” La. R.S. § 30:2004.

28. . LDEQ has the anthority delegated by EPA “for the program administration and
issuance of required permils of the New Svurce Review (NSR) thatl is diveted ul construction i
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (I'SD) arcas . . . for stationary sources located in the
state, a8 well as any other such programy existing under the provisions ol (e Cletn Air Avt of
L9727 La, R, § 30:2011,

29, Major stationary sourees as defined under LAC 33:1(1.509.B must mect
louisiana’s 'SD requivements under LAC 33:111.509.J-R. LAC 33:111.509.A.2. “No new major
stationary sourcc or major modification to which the requirements of Subseetion J-Paragraph R.S
of this Scelion upply shull begin actual construction withoul a permit that states (hal the major
stationary source or major modification will moct those requirements.” LAC 33:11L509.A.3.
Such requirements include, among other things, the lollowing:

g, Application of “hest available control technology [*BACT"| for each
regulated NSR pollutant [i.c., "SD pollutant) that Jthe source] would have
the potential (o emil in significiml amounts," LAC 33:111.509.1.2,

b, Demonsteation by the “awnet or aperator ol (he propased source . . . that
allawable cmission increascs from the propascd source ), in conjunction
with all other applicable cmissions inretyey or reductivns, including
secondary emissions, would not cause or sontribute (o air pollution in
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violation af* &, any natianal ambicnt air qﬁality standurd in uny air quality
control region; or b, any spplicable maximum allowable increasc over the
busclitie concentration in any area” LAC 33:11L500.K.1,

30.  “All estimates of ambient concentrations required under this Subseetion [i.e.,
LAC 33:111.509, Prevention of Significant Detcrioration] shall be based on applicable air quality
models, databases, and other requirements spocificd in Appendix W of 40 CFR P'art 51
(Guideline on Air Quulily Models).” LAC 33:111.509.L.1.

A1, Appendix W mandates the “sorcening appraach” *[tjo determine if a compliance
demonstration for NAAQS and/or PSD increments may be necessary beyond S0 km (i, long-
range (rimsport assessment).” 40 CRR. § Pt 51, App. W, 1.2.¢. The mandated screening
approach has two steps. Kirst, the applicant a must “determine the significance of the ambicnt
impacts at or ahout 50 km from [the propused chemical complex]” *[hjased on application in the
neat-ficld of the appropriale surcening and/or preferred model.” 40 C.ER. § Pt 51, App. W,
A4.2.6.0, Step 2 requires further assessment “[T1f a near-field assessmen! is not available or this
initial analysis indicatcs there may be significunt nmbient, impacts at that distance ...."» Id. The
step 2 asscssment in Appendia W specifically mandates that “applicants shall reach agrocment
on the specific model aud modeling paramaters on a casc-by-case basis in consullution with the
appropriale reviewing anthority (paragraph 3.0(0)) and EPA Regional Office. 40 C.FR. § I'. 31,
App. W, 4.2,¢.ii (emphasis added).

32, Louisiumn's geoeral air regulations define “potential to emit” ny “the muximum
capacity of a stationary sourcc to emit any air pullutant under its physical and opcrational design,
Any physical or operational limitation on the capacity of 4 source to emil un sir pollutant,
including wir pollution contral equipment and restrictions on hours vf uperalion or on the type or
amount of malerial combusted, storcd, or processed, shall be treated as part of its design if: a. the
limitation is enforccable by (he adminisizalor, when the potential to emit is being considered with
regard to federally applicable reguirements; o b. the limitation is caforceuble by the deparlment
when the putential to emit is heing considered with regand (o state wpplivuble requirements.”
LAC 33:111,502.

33, Similarly, Louisiana's regulalions jmplementiog PSI) requirements defines
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“polential (o emil” as “the maximum capacity of a stationary source fo cmit a pollutant under its
physical and opcrational design. Any physival ur operationsd limitation on the capacity of the
source Lo cmil » pollutany, including gic pollution contral equipment and restrictions on hours of
operation or on (e type or amoant of material combusted, stored, or processed, shall be treated
us parl of'ils design it the limitation or the effect it would have on emissions is federally
enforceable.” LAC 33:1I1509.B.

Louiviana Air Operating Permiis Progeam (Clean Air At Title V Requirements)

34, 'The Clean Air Act requires cach slale W develop and submit (o FPA a program
for air operating permits intended (o mocl the requirements of Title V of the Act. 42 US C. §
7661a(d)(1). Louisiana's approved program is codified in 1.AC, tir. 33, pr. 1L, Ch. 5. See 60 Red.

Reg, 47296 (Seplember 12, 1995) (approving Louisiana’s Title V permits program),

35, lLouisiana regulations require all major sources, such as Formosp Plastics®
Chemical Complex, to oblain n permil (hat will meet the requirements of Louisiana’s Title V
operaling permits program. LAC 33:1IL507.A. 1.

36.  Louisiana regulations mandule thal Tile V permits “shall Ineorporate al | federally
applicable requirements for cach cmissions unit at the sowce.” LAC 33:111.507.A.3,

37, The term “fedecally applicable requirements,” as defined under LAC 33111502, i
very broad and includes, among other things,

a. any standard or other requirement provided [of in the |.onisiana Srate
Tmplementation Plan appraved or promulgated by EPA through
rulemaking under Title I ol the Clean Air Aot Ut implements the relevant
requirements of (he Clet Air Act, including any revisions to that plan
promulgated in 40 CTR. Part 52, Subpact I3

b. uny (erm or condition of any preconstruction permits (¢.g., PSD permils)
issucd pursuant to rogululions epproved or promulgated through
rulemaking under Title [ of the Clean Air Acl, including Parl C
(Prevention of Significant Doterioration) vr D (Nunullainment);

¢.  any standard or other requirement under Section 111 (New Source
Performance Standards) of the Cletn Air Act, ineluding Section 111(d)
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(Existing Source Performance Standards);

d. uny standard or other reguirement under Section 112 (Hazardous Air
Poltutonts) of the Claan Air Act, including any requirement concerning
accident prevention under Seetion 112(t)(7) of the Clean Air Act,

38, lLouisiana rcgulations also mandale thut euch Tille V permit “shall include ...
compliance cerlification, (esling, monitoring, reposting, and rocordkeoping requirements
sullicient to asswre compliance wilh s lermns and conditions of the periit as requircd by 40
C.F.R. 70.6(2)(3)." LAC 33:111.507.1 (mirroring the language in 40 C.ER. 70.6(¢)(1).

39, Incorporating mandatory requircments of the Clean Air Acl, Lovisiana regulations
governing ‘Tltle V permits further require (hat LDEQ “shall incorporate into each permit
sufficicnt torms and conditions (o ensure compliance with all starc and federally applicablo air
qualily reyuirements and standards at the sowree and such other lerms and condilions as
determined hy the permitting authority (o be reusnuble und necessary.” LAC 33:111.501.C.6; 42
(.8.C. § 766Lc(c) (“Buch permit issued under [litlc V] shall sct forth inspection, cnlry,
monitoring, compliance cerlificalion, and reporting requivements o assure compliance with the
permit tarms and conditions,”) (emphasis added)).

40,  BACT isan emissions limitation (hal must be cnforeeable in a Title V permit,
I.ouisiana regulations BACT us “4n emissions limitation... hased on the maximwm degrec of
reduction from cuch pollutant subject to regulation under this Scetion (it would be emilled lrom
tuy proposed major stationary source or modifieation...” LAC 33:111.509.13.

41, Inorder Lor BACT Lo “limit” emissions it must be enforceable, Louisiamu
regulations require LDEQ to incorporate BACT as enforceuble conditions of (he Title V pernit,
through either emission limits or operaling parameters, See il Thal is, where a specific numcric
fimit is technically or ceonomicully infeasible, Louisiana repulations provides that “a design,
cquipment, work practice, or opcrational standard or combination thereol may be preseribed
instead to satisfy the requiremacnl for besl available control tachnology.” il ‘The provision
further stresses that “[sJuch standard shall, to the degree possible, set forth the cmission
reduction achicvablc by implementation ol such design, equipment, work practice or operation,
and provide for compliznce by meuns thut achieve equivalent results.” /.
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42, Dermit limits must be both legally and practically enfarcoable (i.c., cnfarccablo 4
a pracﬁcal maller). See In the Matter of Yuhuany Chemical Inc. Methanol Plant, Ordér on
Pclili(nl No. V1-2015-03 at 14 (August 31, 2016). In order (o be culoresable as a practical h:mer,
the permit must, among other (hings, “clearly specify haw emissions will be measured or
determined for purposes of demaonsieating compliance.” Zd. To accomplish (his, “limilativns must
be supported by monitaring, recordkocping, ind reﬁorting requirements sufficient In gnable
regulatars and citizens to determing whether llhe‘ Ih'ml! has been axceeded and), if so, Lo (ake
upproprial¢ enforcement action.” /. (craphasis added).

13, “Inany case where [LDEQ] has delormined tat any proposed new or madified
source would prevent the attainmont or maintenanee of any state or national ambicnt air quality
standard, would violate any upplicable portion of the Louisiana Statc Implementation Pl or
would not result in compliance with all federally applivble requirements and all requirements
and standards of LAC 33:111 Air Quality regulations, |1.112Q] shall have the power to prevenl
" construction, modilication, or aperation of such source and shall deny the permil.” LACG
33:1IL519 (emphusis added).

| Louisiana Public Trustee Duty

44, Under Arlicls IX, § } of the Louisiana Constitation, LDEQ hay a duly us & public
trustee Lo protest the envimnmcn “insofar a5 possible and consistent with the health, safctj, and
wellare of the people.” La, Const, Arl, 9, See, 1

45, The Supreme Court interpretcd Article IX, § 1 as requiring LDEQ “to determine
that adverse environmental impacts have been minimized or avoided as much as possible
consistenily with the public welfare," and LDEQ must make this dletermination “hefore granting
nphmvnl of proposcd action affeeting (he environment.” Save Ourselves v. La. Envi). Control
Comn'n, 452 So, 20 1152, 1157 (1.a. 1984).

When issuing‘pcm\its, suchas the Peﬁnﬂs in this matter, LDEQ must mect-its

mandate as public trustee under Article IX, Scotion 1 of the Lovisiana

Constitulion, Save Onrselves, 452 So. 2d (152, 1157. LDEQ's devision musl

salisty the issucs of whethor: (1) the polenlial and real adverse environmental

cffcets of the proposed project have heen avoided to tho maximum exlent

" passible; (2) a cost-benclil analysis ol the eaviranmental impact costs balanocd

against (he social and economic bencfits of the project demonstrale that the latler

outweighs the former; nd (3) there are no alternative projeets or altemalive sites

or mitigating measures which would offer more protection to the enviranment
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than the propascd praject withoul unduly ewrtailing non-environmental benefils to
the exlent applicable.

Inre Oil & Gas Expl,, Dev, & Prod. Facilitics, Permit No. LAG260000, 2010-1640, p. 4 (La.
App. 1 Cir, 6/10/11); 70 So. 3d 101, 104,

46.  Asupublic trustee, the LDEQ is duty-bound tv demonsirale that it has properly
exercised the discretion vested in it by muking basic findings supported by cvidence snd ultimale
findings that flow rationally from the basic findings; and it must articulule u rationsl connection
between the facls found and the order, or in this case, (he pemnil issued. See Save Qurselves, Inc.,
452 Su, 20 a1 1159 60

47, Thereviswing court must reverse LDEQ's permilting detision, “it the decision
was reached without individualized consideration and balancing ot envivonmental factors
conducted fairly and in good Geith," It at 1159 (internal quotations emilicd),

48,  The Lovisiana nvironmental Qualily At incorporates 1 110)’s public trustce
duty, mandating that “as the primary public trustes of the envitonment, [LLDEQ] shall consider
and Tollow the will and intent of the Constitulion of Lanisiana and Louisiana statuloty Taw in
making any detcrmination relative (o (he granting or denying of permils,” Lu, RS, 30:2014.A.4.

49.  The Louisisna Environmental Quality Act requires applicants (or air peemits for
soureos such 4s Formosa Plastics’ planned Chernical Complex to submit an environmental
assessment statement (“EAS™) us a purt of the permit application, La, RS, § J0:2018.A, “The
enviranmental asscssment statement pravided for in this Scelion shall be used to satisfy the
public trustee requirements of Article [X, Scetion | of the Conslitulion of Louisiana and shall
address (e following issucs regarding the proposed peemir activiry.” La, R.S. § 30:2018,R.

50.  Subparl H provides: “Nothing in this Scelion shall relieve permit applicants or the
depurtment [rom the pub'lic trusice requirements set forth in Article IX, Scetion 1 of the
Constitution o Louisiana and by the Supreme Courl of Louisiana in Suve Ourselves v. Louisiana
Environmental Control Commission, 452 So.2d 1152 (Lo, 1984).” 1a. RS, § 30:2018.1H.

REVIEW STANDARD
§1.  ‘'The judicial revicw provisions in the Jouisiana Environmental Qualily Act

provide that the standard of review in the Louisiana Administrative Procedures Act (“APA”)

13
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applies 1o an appeal of a final permit action. La, R.S. § 30:2050.21(F), The APA provides:

‘'he court may reverse or modily (he decisinn if substantial rights of the appellant

have heen piejudiced because the administralive [indings, inferences, conclusions,

or decisions are; (1) In violation of constitutional or statutory provisions; (2) In

exeess of the stulutory authorily of the agency; (3) Madc upon unlawful

proccdure; (4) Allocted by other erear af law; (S) Athinary or capricions or

characterized by abusc of discretion or clearly unwarranted exercise of discretion;

or (6) Not supported and sustainable by # preponderance of evidence as

delermingd by (he reviewing cowt.

La. RS, § 49:964..

§2.  If the Court finds that LDEQ (vok ativn in violation ol its constitutional public
trustee duty, “the permit[s] herein, [are] null and void and must he vacatcd.” In re Rubicon, Inc.,
95-0108, p. 9, (La. App. 1 Cir, 2/14/1996); 670 So. 2d 475, 481.

§3. “UJf [LEQ'S) decision was reached procedurully, withoul individnalized
consideration and balancing of environmental factors conducted fairly and in good yith, il is (e
courls' responyibility to réverse." Save Qurselves, 452 So. 2d at 1159,

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

54.  lormosa Plastics initially submilled applications to 1.D1Q in September 2015 for
air permits to build its Chemical Complex on a site several miles downriver ofils current site, In
Oclober 2018, Formosa Pastics replaced those applications with now application materials
requosting a PSD permil und 14 Title V (or Part 70) aperating permits for its Chemial Complex
at the current site, which is located in St James Farish District 5, The sile is adjucent (o the
historie Alrican American community of Welcome s direelly ucross he Mississippi River
(rom [he African American community of Union. Formoyu Plustics supplementzd its applicatians
with additional materials that it submitted (o LDIGQ through March 1, 2019.

55, 1.DRQ issued a public noticc on May 28, 2019 on  propused PSD permil, 14
proposed ‘Title V permits, und the aysociated Ravironmental Assessment Statement (*EAS”) for
Formosu Plaslics’ proposed Chemical Complex.

56.  LDRQ held o public hearing on the proposed pemmils and TAS on July 9, 2012,
where community residents and organizations filled the St. Jumes West Bank Reception [all to

appose the issuance of the permils.

57, Residents ut the public hearing living within two miles of the Formosa Plastics'
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chosen site \mnnimm\lsly opposed the project, voicing convems mostly aboul health impacts
associated with living neur industeinl plants,

58, 1.DEQ extended the written comment period until August 12, 2019, During the
public comment period, the agency reveived over 15,000 comments from individuals and
organizations opposing (he issvunce ol the permits,

59,  Petilivners submitted comprehensive comments to LDEQ on the proposed permils
und GAS on Augnst 12, 2019, including commends from engineering exper(s in permifting under
the Clean Air Act, slong with supplemental comments August 26, 2019 and November 26, 2019,

60, On January 6, 2020, LDEQ issucd o final decision granling the Permils uf issue in
this proceeding with minimul changes [rom (he praposed permits.

61, Petitioners raised all reasonably ascertainable issues and submitled all rensonubly
uv;lilable evidence supparting their pasition on Formosa Plastics” peomil applications in the
comments lhm.. they submitted to LDEQ prior to (he isswance of LDEQ’s final decision granting
the Permits. See La, RS, § 30:2014.3,8.

62, Pelitioners have goad cause within the meaning of La, R.S. § 30:2014.3.C (o raisy
new issues and introduce new cvidence in Ihis provecding, parlicularly 10 the extent they were
not reasonably ascerlainable or reasonably available prior to the issuance of LDEQ's final
decision granting the Permils,

FACIS

The Comnuenity

63, St Jumes Purish iy divided into seven districts. Formosa I'lastics’ 2400-acre site
sits entively within District 5. It is also righl serosy (he Mississippi River from communities in
Dishict 4,

64,  District S is home to several historic Alrican Americin communities including
Welcome, which is adjacent to the Formosu Plustics sile.

65.  District 4 i also home to African American communitics, including Union, which
abuts the Mississippi River levee 1ess than a mile from the Chemical Complex. |

66, In 2014, 8t. fames Parish adopted its first-cver land use plan, where it designuted
Taege portions of District 5 as “Industeial™ or “Exisling Residential/Futurs Wndusteial,” This plan
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put several historic African American residential communities and churches in arvas the Parish
now designuted as “Industrial” or “Existing Residentisl/Fulurs Industeial,” See Section §6-37 of
the St. James Varish Code of Ordinances,

67, InMay 2018, St. James Parish amended ils Lmd use plan, converting the arca

immediately adjacent to Formosa Plastics' sile [rom “Existing Residential/Future Industrial” o

“Residential Growth,” where the historic community of Weleome is located,

68.  More than 2,000 people live within 3 miles of the Formoss Plastics site, 75% of
whom identify as African Amcrican,

69.  According lo TPA's JScreen, the communitics immediately surrounding
Formosa Plastics” site are disproportionately minority. Tor instance, Welcome has a 93%
Tuinorily populmio-n.

70.  According to 2010 Census Tracl dala, the tract that includes Formosa Plaslics’
site (Trace 405) shows that 87.1% ol the ltal population identifics as “Black or Alrivin
Amcrican,"

71, 'The population of 81, James Parish as a whole is 52% minority, and the stule of
Louisiana has & minorily populition of 41%.

72, The data show that the proposed sile Lor the facility is Incated within an arca that
Tios & sighificantly higher winority population than the parlsh as a wholc or the state, as a whole,

73.  ‘'he Formosu Plasticy site is well under onc milc from the residential comwnity
of Union, across the Mississippi River in Convent, and approximalely one mile upriver fiom
Tillh Waed lementary School (renmed St V.onis Academy) and the residential communily of
Welcome,

T4, St James Parish is already onc of the most heavily industrialized parishes in the
slate ol | ouisiana.

75. Four of the top five current toxic chemical relcasers in St. James Parish are within
four miles of Formosn Plastics’ site.

76,  The air emissions that result from the Jense indusirial activities that LDEQ has
permitied have a cumulative adverss impacl (hat. disproportionally cffects minorily communities
in the area of Formosa Plaslics' site,
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77, Analysis conducted by The Advocnts shows that 8t Jawcs Parish is ulreudy
“mare toxic with cancee-cousing shemicals than 99.6% of indusirialized arens in the country.”
The study voncludes that if Formosa operates ay permitted, the emissions fiom the Chemical
Complex would exposc arca rosidents Lo “more than triple” the toxic lovels of vancer-causing
chemicals as they currently suffer,

78.  EPA's Toxic Rélense Inventory (TRI) ranks S1. Junes Parish 56 of the 2,300
ranked counties in the LS. for total toxic relensey per square mile.

79.  According (o TScreen, the people who live within (hree miles of the center of the
proposed Formosa Plastics facility site have a groater polential for exposurc to PMzs, groater risk
of cameer from toxic air pollution, and greater risk of sospiratory {lincss thun more than 75% of
Louisiana’s population.

80,  The modeling in the record shows NAAQS violations in St. James Parish for al
cast the NO2 |-hour standard and the PMas 24-hour,

- 81, Themodeling in the record shows increment consumption for the I'Mz.s 24-hour
standard.
Formosa Plastics amd Its Poor Compliznce History

§2. MG LA LLC, the enlity to which 1.11Q issned the Permils, is purt of Formosa
Plastics Group, a Taiwancsc-buged conglomerate. Formosa Plastics Group is also the parent
company of Formosa Plastics Corporation, U.S.A (FFC), FPC vwns and operates Formosa
D'laslics' existing chemical plants in Baton Rouge and Point Comfort, Texas, Both of these
plants, like Formosa Plaglics’ proposed Chemical Complex, muke plastics or the building blocks
for making plastics. 'or ease of reference, and because all of these entitios are ullimalely owned
or tontrolied by the same company, (hey ure referred to in this scction colloclively as “Formosa
Plastics.”

83.  Inthe LS., at lcast 98 statc or federal civil enforcement cases have boen filed
aningt Formosa Plastics, 53 of which were for Clean Air Act violuliuns,

§4.  InLouisiany, Formosa Plastics has consisiently Luiled to remedy documented
violations ul ils Baton Rouge facility, where the [ucility has registered “high priority violations™
of the Clean Air Act every siugle moneh since August 2009, All of these high priority violations
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include excessive emissions of vinyl chloride, o known human carcinogen,

85.  Over the last two years, the Baton Rouge facility has been subjeet to one formal
RCRA enforcement action and four formal Clcan Air Act enforcement netions, including o
federal penalry of $277,200 for, inter alia, filure (o correet deficiencies repor(ed in its 200K and
2011 complisnce sudits, In udditivn, in 2007, Lonisiana fined I'ormosa I'lastics aver $4 million
aller an aperator at the Baton Rouge facility opencd {he bollom valve on the wronyg reuclor,
releasing 8,000 pounds of vinyl ehloride into the atmosphere.

86.  In 2009, Formosa Plastics was required (o spend rnoré than $10 million on
pollution controls to address air, waler, wnd huzardous wasle violations at the plants in Point
Comfort aud Baton Rouge, in uddilion o paying $2.8 million in civil penalties.

87.  InJune 2019, the Unired States District Court for the Southern District of Texas
(yund Vormosa Plastics liable for “cnormous” violations of the Clesn Waler Acl und conclude
that “IYormosa is a serial offender,” beesuse Formoga Plustics allowed (he ongoing, long-term
dischurye o plastic pellets, simifar ra those Formesa Plastics’ Chemical Complex would
produce, inte neaihy waterwi'xys that arc home 1o important commereial and recreutionul fishing
gronnds. ‘The Court granted monctary and injunclive relic aguinst Formosa Plastics for 1,149
continuous days of dischurging plastic pellels in vielation of the Clean Water Act, and for failurc
to reporl those vialations to state or federal authoritics as required by Formosn Plastics’ permils,
Follawing the ruling, Formosa Plastics enlored into 4 federul consent decree worth $30 million,
including funding for clean-up efforts, further pollution controls, and additional monitoring,

88.  In2016, a Formosa Plastics subsidiury caused a chemical spill in Vietnam,
referred to as Vietnam's worst environmental disaster. ‘The spill caused mass dic-offs of fish in
watcrs off central Vielnum's coust, Formosa Plastics paid 2 $500 million fine, ordered by the
Vicnamese government, in compensation for relcasing chemicals like cyanide info the water,
The spill affccted morc than 40,000 workers who rely on fishing and Wurism. In 2017, an
cnvironmental justice group discovered that a Formaosa I*fastics plant in 'l'aiwan cxcceded
emission slandards over 25,000 times and never paid the praper fines for those cmissions,

The Permifs LDEQ Issued for Formosa Plastics' Planned Chemical Complex

9. 1.0Q issued 2 I'SD permit and 14 Title V (or Part 70) permils to Formoss
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Plastics to huild 14 separatc facilitics that ar cach a Cloun Air At “major source.” The facilitics
include 10 chemical manufacluring plants, plus 4 support facilities. ‘The 10 chemical plants
would manufaclure clhylene, propylene, ethylene glycol, high density polycthylone, low densily
polycthylene, linear low density bolyethylenc, and polypropylenc. Each plunt will produce cither
plustic pellets, or chemicals to he used in applications like plastics production, The four suppoit
units include clectric power and sleum generating facilities, a wastewater trcatment plant, storage
und loading operations, and assnciated emission conlrol systems,

90.  LDEQ issucd PSD-LA-812, which is the 'S1) preconstruction permit that covers
the whole Chemical Complex, In addition, 1.NEQ issued 14 sopavate Title V (or Part 70) permil

for cach process unit or plant hat comprises the complex. They ave us follows:

Permit Process Unid

3141-V0 Fthylene | PMaat

3142-VQ Fihylene Gilyeol 1 Plant

3143-V0 | High Density Polyethylene | Plant
3144-V() Lincar Low Densily Polyethylene Plant
3145-V0 Propylone Plawt

3146-V0 Polypropylene Plant

3147-V0 Logistics Plant —
3148-V0 Ulility | Plait .
3149-V0 Cenieal Water ‘I'reatment lant

3150-V0 Clhylene 2 Plant

3151-V0 ithylene Cilycol 2 Plant

3182-Vl) [ligh Dengity Polyethylene | Plant
N53-v0) _ | Low Density Polyethylenc Plunl
[ 3154=V0 Utility 2 Phmt

91,  TFollowing is o description of the process authorized by cach of the Title V
permily; |

- lithylenc 1 Plant (Permit No. 3141 -V0) & {Fihylene 2. Permit No. 3150-VO): The
two clhylenc planls, known as “ethylene crackers” would produce cthylene by
thermally cracking cthanc for use as a raw malerial in vlhér plants at (he complex.
Formosa Plustics ulso intends to expoit cthylene and/or import cthylene from un oll-
site pipeline.

- lihylenc Glyeol 1 Plant (Permil No. 3142-Y0) & Lthylene Glycol Plant 2 (FPeymit
No. 3151<V0): The two cthyleme glyeol phnts would produce gly;:nls, primavily
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monoethylene glycol (MEQ) and some diethylene glycol (DIi(i) and polyethylene
glycol (PEG), hy first veacting ethylenc and oxygen to form cthylene oxide, then
catalytically converting the cthylene oxide into glycols using carbon divxide and
waller,

Lligh Density Polycthylene (HDPE) 1 Vlant (Pormit No. 3143-V0) & HDPE 2 Plant
(Pgrit. No. 3152-V(): The twa HNPIE plants would produce pellets by polymerizing
cthylenc using comonomer (1-butene), hydrogen, hexane. and several catalysts,

Linear Low Densily Polycthylene (LLDPE) Plant (Peninit No. J144-VQ): The LLDPE

Plant wouldl produee various grades of LIDPT, pelléls by polymerizing elhylene
using a vaviety of comonomers, catafysts, and additives.

Low Density Polycthylene (LDPE) Plant (Permit No. 3153-V0): The LDPE Planl
(whieh is dilTerent Mrrom the LLDPE Planl) would produce various grades of LIPI
petlets by polymerizing ethylene using a variety of comonomers, catalyss,
maderators, modificis, initiators, and additives,

Propylenc Plant (Permit No. 3145-V0): The Propylenc Plant would produce polymcre
grade propylene vin dehydrogenution of propane over a catalysl, the majority of
which Formasa Plastics plans to use as a raw material for the Polypropylenc 1'lant.
Polypropylenc Plant (Peomit No. 3 146-V0): The Potypropylene Plant would produce
various grades of polyprapylene hy polymerizing propylene with comonomers and a
varicty of modificrs to adjust molecular weight and physical propertics.

Logistics Plant (Permil No. 3147-V0); The Logistics Plunl would include (he storage
and Toading faeilities for the liquid and paseous products that Formosa Plastics wonld
produee at the Complex.

Utility | Planl (Permil No, 3118-V0): The Utility 1 Plunt would include two boilers
for the production of steam to support facility operations, aiv compicssors, and a raw
watcr/demincralized water treatment plunt,

Utility 2 Plant (Permit No. 3154-V0): The Utility 2 Plant would provide additional

cquipment for the production of stesm and eleclricity, including two gas turbines with
heat recovery generalors (HRSGs) and wboiler,
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- Central Wastewater Treatment Plant (CWTP) (Permit N, 3149-VO): The CW1'P
would include systems Lox the trentment of organic and inarganic wastewatcr streams,
us well us sludge generated by these treatment traing,

92.  Upon information and belicl; LDEQ has never issucd as many initial ir permits
at onc time to & compuny (o build an industrial complex as large as Forniosa Plastics’ plamned
Chemical Complex.

3. “T'he tables below show (he lotal emissions thut the Permils authorize Formosa
Plastics to cmit from the catire complex in (ons per year (TPY). The first rable shows the Criteria
Pollutants, which are pollutants (or which ambient air quality standards have been scf, including
volatile organic compaunds (YOC), which arc a precursor for ozome, also known as geound-level
smog, This table alsa includes greenhause gas emissions. Vhe sceond tablc shows toxic air
pollutants, which are pollutants listed in LAC 33:5112, Tables 51.1 and 1.3, These pollutants
are known or suspected to cause cancer or other serious Loullh efleets, such as repraductive
offects, or to cuuse wdverse enyironmental effects. ixcept for ammania, hydrogen sulfide, and
sulfurio acid, these pollulmls are also classified as VOC and are included in the VOC tolal in the
Crilerin Pollutants table.

Criteria Pollwants (1Y)

Pollvlunt Tanissions
Particutar matter 10 (PMu) 363.86
Particular matter 2.5 (I"Maz.s) 13981
Sulfur dioxide (S02) 82.90
Nxtrc;gon oxides (NOx) 1242.53
Carbon monoxide (CO) 2768.93
Volatilc organic compounds (VOC) [ 166789
Carbon dioxide cquivaleats (CO) | 13,628,001
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Tuxic Air Pollutants (1Y)

Pollulanl [imissions
1,3-Duradicne 23,89
Acctaldchyde ' 17.78
Ammonia . 436,75
Renzene 36,58
Cumene s
Dibulyl phihulute oo
Dimcthy!l sullale 0.08
Ethyl benzene 0.46
Kthylene glycol 44,76
Lihylene nxide ' 770
Formaldehyde R.90
Iydrogen sulfide ' 013
Methanal o 0.01
Naphihalene oo
n-Hexune T
‘Thenol 011
I'ropionaldchyde (.48
Sulfuricacid 6,02
Slyrene 0.82
Toluene ' 841
Vinyl acetate 59.81
Xylene 2.18
"l'otal $02,95
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Alr Quality & 1'SD
fodlef)
Consultution requirements with EPA Region 6 on Class I Modeling

94,  As discussed above, Appendix W mandates (he “scrzening approach” that
Formosa Plastics way required (o follow “|(Jo determine if 2 compliance demonstration for
NAAQS und/vr PSD irierements may he necessary heyond 50 km (i.c., long-range transporl
assessment).” 40 C.ILR. § I't. 51, App. W, 4.2.¢. As to the first slep, Formosu Plustics stipulated
that its project would cause significant umbicnt impact on the Rreton Wilderness Class [ arcaat
50 km,

Y5.  Necausc Formosa Plastics stipulnted (el ils project would cause a significant
impact at 50 km, it was required W conduct further assessment. "U'his step 2 assessment required
Formosa Plustics (o consult with 1XPA Region 6 to detcrmine the appropriate modeling method
belore il condueted its madeling,

96.  Formosa Plastivs nover consulted wilth FPA Region 6 to determine the appropriate
mocdeling method before it conducted its madeling.

97.  Iecausc Kormosa Plastics failed (o comply with (he mandatory air modeling
requircments in Appendix W, Formosu Plastics’ Class | modeling is invalid.

Ambient Air Modeling Reynirements

98,  Louisigma air regulitions do notexempt air lncated at Kovmosa Plastics’ site from
the delition al “ambient it for the purposc of complying with PSD requirements, Thut 15, the
air that is at Formosa Plastivs® sile is purl of (he “anbient air” that is suhject to PSD air quality
regulalions and must meet the NAAQS and not contiibule o overconsumplion of NAAQS
increments.

99, Formosu Plaslivs' NAAQS and Class Il increment modeling is inaccurate hecaust
it anulyzed ambient air quality beginning at the cdge of its 2400-acyc site rather thun at he
Incation of its planncd Chemieal Complex within the sile,

100.  Formosa Plastics asserled thut it could substitnte more permissive guidance
ollered by FPA that would allow it exempr from the “ambicnt air,” arcas to which the public is
hath legally and practically barrcd from access, This i incvrreet, Bul, dssuming Jor the sake of
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argument that this guidance applicd, Formosa Plastics’ modeling did not mect even this more
lenient stundurd, There are acens wilhin the Chemical Complex to which members ol the public
may have access. Formosa I'lastics is not fencing its entive site, or otherwise controlling access to
the enlire site. The public will be uble Lo aceess (he wetland arens located primarily southwesl of
Highwey 3127, The public will nlso be able to access the $t, James Canal, which runs through
the back poition of the praperty and is popular for fishing. For this reason, Formasa Plastics
failed to follow EPA's more permissive modeling guidance, which allows modeling of smbicnl
air ta begin outside the area of conteolled access.
Failure to use a Consistent Class Il Increment Modeling Method

101, Fomnaosa Plastics’ Class 1l increment modeling of 'Mio and PMas violates
applicahle regulations because it docs not comply with 40 C.ER. Part 51, Appendix W or LAC
33:111.509.L requirements, Formosa Plastics’ wse of 2016 “actual cmissions™ was improper, it
deviated from its agreed protocol, it filed Lo docwment its method for delermining which
regional sources (o inchade in (he incrament analysis for "M, it failed to include a igger date
for baseline cimission, it failed o provide a rationale for 'Mas speciation, and it failed to create a
documented inventory of other sources ineluded in (he Cluss I1 ineretment model,

102,  Because Formosa Plastics failed to comply with PS1) modeling requirements,
{herg is no hasis for 1.IIYQ’s conchusion that Fornosa Plastics has minimized air quality cffcets
by camplying with applicable regulations. Therefore, LDEQ should not have spproved Formosa
Plastics' air qualily modeling in ils deision 1o issue the Permils,

NAAQS & Increments

103, The air qualily aualysis shows exceedances of the NAAQS.

104.  The 'Mzs 24-hour maximum madcled concentration, plus background, is 51.66
pp/n’, exceeding the NAAQS limit of 35 pg/m?.

105, The NOz 1-hour maximum modleled conveniration, plus background, is 422,53
pg/mr’, which vastly exceeds the NAAQS limil ol 189 pg/n?®,

106.  Modeling for PMz.s 24-hour shows increment consumption at receptor lncations.

107, Modcling for "Mz and NOx show thal the planned Chemical Complex will
contribute to NAAQS violations and exceedance of o Cluss IT inerennent,
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108.  Formosa Plastics therclore did nol demonsteate that its I'Mz.s emissions will “not
ctuse, ot coutribute 1o an exceedance of the 1Mas 24-hour NAAQS us Louisiana PSD
vegnlations requive. Rather, Formosa Plagtics' own modeling shows that Formosa I lasties would
contributc to violations of the PMa2 s 24-hour NAAQS.

109, Formosa Plustics did ot Gemonstrate that its I'Mzs emissions will “not cuuse, or
contribute (0™ consumption of PMa.s 24=hour increments as Louisians PSID regulations require.
Rather, Formosa Plastics' own modeling shows overconsumption of the M 24-hour increment
for the area that contains the Chemical Complex.

110.  Formosa Plastics did not demonsirale thal its NOx emissions will “nat cause, or

contribute to” an cxceedance of the NOz L-hour NAAQS as Louisiana PSL) regulations requirc,
Rather, Foxmosa Plastics' own modeling shows that Formosa 'lastics would contribute Lo :
violutivny of the NO2 1-hour NAAQS.
111, Becausc Formosa Plastics’ own modeling cleurly shows Mat the area in which it
plans (o construet its Chemical Complex will be located is in non-aitainment for the 1-hour NOx
and PMa,s 24-hour NAAQS, Formosa Plastics should luve been required ty meet nan-attainment
new souree review regulations under LAC 33:111.504, the Louisiana S1P, and the Clean Air Aok,
{12. LDEQ concluded that Pormosa [Mlastics’ emissians will not causc or confribule lo
nn excecdunee of any NAAQS or increment consumption by invoking an extra-legul method set
oul in its Air Quality Monitoring I'raccdurcs, which provides: “If (he magimum contribution
from the proposcd projoct is less (han (he significance level at the reccptor(s) and time(s) of the
pulsntial exceedance(s), the proposed projcet will not cause nor signilicuntly contribule 1o the
patential NAAQS exceedance(s).” This exira-legal method is called herein the *Significant
Impact Level Policy."
113, The“Significant lmpact Level Policy” LDEQ applicd violales the Clean Air Act
and Tonisiana air regufations implementing PSD requirements and i also acbitrary and
capricious as applicd in (his case, LNRQ eannat autharize a violation of the NAAQS, and any
such attempt runs counter 1o the Clean Air Act’s clear mandale Ut EPA set the NAAQS ata
Tevel that is “requisitc to proteot the public hoalll,” wilh “an adeqnate margin of safety.” 42
VS.C. § 7409(h)(1). The Supreme Court has constred this mandate as requiring the NAAQS to
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{

he set at levels “not lower or higher tﬁan is necessary — ta proteet the public health with an
adcquate margin of sulcty.” Whitman v. Am. Trucking Ass 'ns, 531 U.S, 457, 475-76 (2001).
Because by luw (he NAAQS must alrcudy rellect the absolute pollution limit requisite to protect
health, LDEQ stnot specily that pollution levels higher than the NAAQS are permissible.

114, In addition, LDILQ’s use of Significant Impact Levels to dismiss Formosa-
Plastics’ contribution to NAAQS excosdunces wnd incremient consumption is acbilfary and
capricious.

115, Tor instance, PMasemissions are particutarly harmful, and can he deadly. In
October 2018, the 1EPA released a draft review of the public health impact of finc particulatc
poliution. After assessing nearty 2,800 studics in its 1 ;900-pagc roport, the agency concluded that
the seicnce supported lowering the snnual exposure limil for PM2s by as much us vne
(hird. Further, o new study published in (he Journal of the American Medical Asso ciation
(JAMA) Netwark Open on November 20, 2019 found links between chronic PMa,s cxposurc and
nearly 200,000 deaths,

116, NOais associnted with redueed lung function, asthma, breathing problems, and
increased ermergency room and hospital visits,

117, 1.DIQ failed to take inta consideration the harmful cffccts of Formosa Plastics’
"Mz.5 cmissions, cspecially as detailed by EPA and the new study published in JAMA, LDEQ
failed (o uddress (he NO2 NAAQS exceedances and increment overcansumprion.

Potential to Emit

118,  Formosa Plugtics’ permit applications underestimate the Chemical Complex’s
“potentiat to emit™ pollutants, This is a central issue, because Formosa Plastics” potential-to-cmit
estimates formed the inpurs for afv quality modeling of the Chemical Complex's emissivns. The
estimules also informed analysis of the cosl-ellectiveness and necessity of pollution control
technologies and monitoving and recordkeeping requircnients. |

(19, Formosa Plustics' permil upplications rely on emissions fsclors (o Jelermine the
complex's polentiul W cmnil, which are not based on the maximum capacity ol the souroe [0 emit
gir pollulun(s under ils physicul and vperation (lelsign. but instend are based, al best, on average
cmissions {rom « source calegory,
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120.  Tormosa Plastics’ application provides “poteatial to cmit" for VOC emissions
based on 11PA data that reflects source averages, nol (he maximum,

121, There is no support in the record for many of Formosa Plastics’ cmissions
assumplions. For instance, Formosa Plastics assumed that its flarcs would have destruction
elliciency rates of 9% or 99 percent, regardloss of the [ure (ype, the wmlel gas compositian, or the
flow rate to the Mure, Formosa PIastic.% cited no active puidance justifying this ussumpﬁun.
parlicularty since a flare’s actual- destruction cfﬁcicn@ iy heuyily dependant on aperating
conditions. 1'o rcprc@nt true “polontial (0 omil,” Forimosa Plastics should have assuncd the
lawest potential destruction cfficicncies Lor each flare,

122, There s no support in the record for Formosa Plastics’ assumplion thal the
(hermal oxidizers can destray VOCS at a xate £ 99,9 percent, This is especially important
becausc the canccr-cimsiﬁg cthylene oxide emissinng were calculated based on (his assumption,
Further, the permil does not iqlclude requircments that Formosa Plastics install thermal oxidizers
that ean achicve a 99.9 destruction clfiviency rate,

123. LDEQ failed o require Formose Plastics to revise its “potential to emit" eslimnles
using cmissivns datu Mo reflect maxinum potcatial cmissions and thal wre supporled by
‘Vcriﬂtl'ble and relevant data,

124, Formosa Plastics’ unsupported I’Mz.s s.pcciation scrves to underostimate smissions
and therefore ambient impacts.

125. I.DHQ’s decision fo issue the Permily relies on Formosa Plastics’ underestimated
“notential ta emit” cstimatos for ?Mz.s, NOx, and VOC,

| 126,  Bevuuse Formose Pl(;§lics underestimated the Chemical Complex's PTE, Ihe
health and gnviroﬂmenml impacts of the complex’s PM@ 3, NOx, and YOC cmissions wre
underestimated.
Toxic Pollurant

127.  ‘The Permits allow Formosa Plastics Lo emil over $00 tons (or 1,600,000 pounds)
per year txic air pollutants, which, upon informalion and beliet, would double the amount of
toxic emissions currently relensed purish-wide on ayearly basis from cxisting industrial

facilitics.
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128, Mumy of the toxic air pollutants that Kormosa Plastics would emil are knowa (0
ciusu cancer in huimans, |

129, 'The most hazardous of the plants thal Formosa Plustics plans to uild in terms of
cahcer-causing air pollutants are the two elhylene p}‘nﬂucﬂon plants known as “cthylene.
orackers™ and the Lwo ethylene plyeol plants. The iwo cthjl:mc cravkers would be permitizd o
emit the majority of the l,3-buludicn§' an beazeng emissions at the complex, and the two
cthylenc glycol plants would be responsinle for all of the complex's cthylene oxide emissions.
These four planis would e lncated toward the fronl of Formoso Plastics’ 2400-acre site closost
(o areq residences and the clcmcnlary_ school, |

130,  The Integraled Risk Information System (“IRIS™) )progmm is m independlent,
seigntist-led otfice at EPA, intentionally insuluted from régulatory processes to onsutc a health-
protective and seience-bused approach. EPA IRIS valucs represont the bost available sisnee on
the human henlth ellects associated with exposutc to various chemicals, und ars “the preferred
souree of loxigity infarmation uscd ‘by EPA" Thcfc are several JRIS toxicity values that cxpross
intwlation risk, The most common values axe (ke intlalivn unit tisk and reference conccntration
value, nsed for cancer and noneanver ;ISSGSSIIIGNS respectively

(31, Formosu Plastics’ maximum modeled concentrations of clhylens oxide and vinyl
ucetate exceed BPA’s IRLS value, which meuns lh\‘u. (hey exceed the “contimious inhalation
exposurc to the human population (including sensitive subgroups) that is likely tv be withoul un
appreciable risk ol delclerious effects during a lifetime.”

132, 1iPA developed the Rigk.écrcming Environmental Indicators (“RSEI”) model,
which is publicly available. The model caleutates the estimated chemical concenirations lrom
industry-repurted (oxic industrial plant cmissions across tie country dawn 10 810-hy-810-meter
blocks, providing focused information that highlights the risk 10 fenceline and other communities
localed neur Loxic facilities. ‘The RSEI modcl “incorpornles information from the [1PA’S] Toxics
Release Inventory (1'1) on the amount of loxie chemicals refensed, tagether with factors such s
the chemical's fate and transport through the environment, each chemical’s ralative toxicity, and

potenlial human exposuve.”
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133.  The RSEI model is (he best available iaol for understanding which high-pollution
arcas warrant further scrutiny, As EPA cxplains,

[Phe R$EI) model helps policy makers, researchers and comununitios cxplore dute

on releases of toxic substances from industrinl feilities, RSE incorporates

information fram the Taxics Relcasc Inventory (TRI) on (he amount of taxic

chemicals reloused, lugether with factors such as the chemical's Lite uid trangport

hrough the environment, cach chermicul’s relative toxicity, and potcntial human

exposure, RSLI Scares can be used fo help extublish priorities for further

investigation.

134.  Using the R8I model, 'The Advoval und ProPublica sponsored a study where an
air quulily modeling expert analyzed Formosa Plaslics’ expected toxic cimissions in combinalion
wilh toxic emissians from cxisting cmission sources in the area. ' study concluded (hal
Kormosa Plastics' toxic emissions would wiple the levels of cencer-causing chemicals residents
who live one mite east and downriver of Foriusa Plastics” site in Welcome arc cxposcd Lo, and
double the levels of cancer-cousing chemicals residents who live across the river rom Formose
Plastics’ site in Union are exposed (0,

135,  The Advacate and I'rol*ablica study [ound “(hat the it around ormosa’s sitc is

more loxic wilh cancer-causing chemicels thur 99.6% ol induswialized arcas of the counlry®

alveady, and that “[i]L the vomplex emits all the chemicals it proposes in ils permit application, it

would rank in the tap 1% nationwide of mujor plants in Ametica in terms of the concontrations
of cancer-causing chemicaly in 1§ vicinity.” !
136.  Neither Formosa Plastics nor LDEQ uscd the RSEI mode] Lo wualyze Formosa
Plastics’ toxic emissions,
137, Neither Formosa Plastics nor LDEQ analyze the tafad risk that would result from
Formosa Plastics? tolal carcinogenic emissions o4 top of existing cancer risk using TPA’s IRIS
valucs lo aceurately reflect the increased lifetime health risk o surrounding communitics.
138, LDEQ's ambicnl air qualily slandards for toxic pollutants are outdated and do not
vely an the most currenl, best available science.
lithyleng Oxide
139, Avcording to ItPA, cthylenc oxide is linked to breast cancer, non-llodgkin
lymphoma, and fymphocytic lukemia, In ndditian to significant cancer risks, the Agency Jur
‘I'oxic Substances and Disease Registry ("A'TSDR™) warns thal acule respiratory exposure to
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cthylenc oxide may canse narrowing of he bronchi and partial lung collapse, Tahalation of
othylens oxide can also produce central nervous system depression, and in extreme cases,
respirvatory distress and coma. The ATSDR also notes thut chil dren may be more vulnerable Lo
othylene uxide cxposure, especially chronic exposurs. PA and the ATSDR have also warned
thol imhalation exposure to ethylene oxide can lead ta spontaneous abortions,

140.  Based an 2017 KPA’s Toxic Releuse Inventory (“TRI"), only (wo other sources in
the U.8., and onc source in the stalc, reporled aclual ethylene oxide emissions that exceed the
7.70 tons per year o 15,400 pounds per year limit that the Permits allow Formosa to cmit.

141, 1n 2016, EPA scicntists in the agency's IRIS program produced an upduied risk
valus [or ethylene oxide exposure. The IRIS program found cthylenc oxide is far more
carcinogenic than previously understood, and linked long-lerm exposure t ethylene oxide ko
increascd visk of cancers of (he while bloud cells, including non-1 lodgkin fymphamg, myeloma,
and lymphocytic leukemia, as well as breust cancer in [emales,

142.  The IRIS progeam produced its updated ethylenc oxide risk value following
rigorous, 10-year lang, peer-reviewed process, including public notice and commenl, RIS
determined that the “full lifetime (olal cancer unit risk estimale,” including age-tependent
adjusiment factors due (0 arly-Yile inhalation exposure to cthylene oxide, is 5.0 x 10° or 0,005
per jg/m’, ‘Ihe commensurate chranic (lower-hound) exposurc level of ethylene oxide
soreesponding ta an increased cancer risk of 10 (1-in-] million) is 2 x 10 or 0.0002 per pe/m’.
JRIS determincd that EPA has “rclatively high" vonfidence in (he unit risk estimate, “hased on
slrony epidemiolygical evidence supplemented by other lincs of evidence,” including “a large,
high-=quality cpidemiology study with individual worker exposare eslimates,” and found that the
miethod of lingar low-exposure extrapolation used js strongly supported,” and that “[¢lonfidence
. .. is particularly high for the broust cancer comnponent,” based on “over 200 inoideni cases.™

143, Other svicntists and henlih experts have independently contivmed IPA’s findings,
including (he Nativpal Toxicology Program, the Intemational Apency for Research on Cancer,
and the Oceupational Safety and {lealth Administration.

144.  EI'A’s 2014 National Air Toxics Asscssment, relying on (he most recent IRIS
data, cstimated that cthylene oxide “signilicantly conteibutes (o potential elevated cancer risks in
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some census tracts across the U.S." The report found that Cancer Allcy census (racls wers among
the most at-risk srcas in the country.

145. ‘e results of Nativmal Air Toxics Assessment were intended to help CPA and
state agencics fike TOEQ identify which pollutants, smission sources and places they may wish
(0 study Jurther 1o better undcrstand any possible visks to public health frowm air toxics,

146.  Same state ugencics have reacted to this information with deep concern and
conercte action, For instance, ethylene oxidc’s alarming risk polentil hes led to regulatory
¢fforts und (he recent closuro of plants that smitled the chemical in Georgia an& Illinois.

147.  In light of this information, FPA is in the process of amending ity regulilions of
cthylone oxide emissinns fram several source calegotiey, In December 2019, KI'A proposed a
rule t amend National Emission Standurds [or 1azardous Aiv I'ollutants for Miscellanco us
Organic Chemical Manufactuzing (i.e., the “proposed MON rule,” which is aimed wl roducing
clhylene oxide. See 84 Fed. Reg,, 69,182 (Dec, 17, 2019).

148, The clhylene oxide emissions authorized by LDEQ in the Permits would allow
ncarly s ruch ethylene oxide as EPA's propused MON ruile aims to climinatc,

149.  Ethylens oxide is a principal culprit for the approximalely 100 census tracts in the
nalion whose cancer visks exceed tho lovel EPA vongiders accepiable.

150.  Formosa Plastics' modeled maximum groundslevel concentrulion ol elhylene
oxide shaw that these emissions would lead to 21,320 to 7,764 porcent increus over 2014
background cthylen ouidle exposure concentrations in (he census (racts surrounding Formosa
Plustics’ site.

15, Formosa Plastics’ madelcd ground-lovel elhylenc oxide concentration is also at
cagt two thousend times greater than the IRIS risk valug for ethylene oxide.

152.  Formosa Plastics’ own modeling concluded that cthylene oxide concentrations in
amounts greater than what EPA considers to be the upper limit of an sceeplable risk (ie,, 0.02
pg/m? or 1+in-10,000 cuncer risk, which is EPA’s upper limil o wn acceptable risk) wanld cxtend
across (he Mississippi River to the residentivl community of Union.

153.  Kormosa Plastics' clhylens oxide concentrations that cxceed the L-in 100,000 risk
level would extend (o the Filth Ward Klomentary school, Welcome, wnd much of Convent, which
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i the Iocation of the parish conrt and other important parish funclions,

154. Formosa Dlastics’ ethylene oxide cuncenteations that exceed the 1+in 1,000,000
risk level would extend as Lo as Pawling in Distriet 3.

155.  Both chronic and acme cthylenc oxide inhalalion exposure can produce more
severe health impacts, including increased cancer risk, in children due (o their relatively higher
respiratory minute volume as compared Lo adulls, GPA guidance states that ape-dependent
adjustment faclors should be used to account for these cahanced risks (o vhildren,

156.  LDEQ did not consider increused cancer risk that Formosa 1'lastics' cthylenc
oxide cmissions pose {o children, This omission is especially cgregious given (hal in Formosa
Plastics Supplemental Knvironmental Asscssment Stulement, (he 0.02 pg/m? boundary for its
elhylene pxide eimissions appeass to rewch the residential community of Union and is loss than a
quarter of a mile west of the closest church and Fifth Ward Elementary School, which serves
hundreds of pre-kindergarten (0 sixth prade stdents.

157.  LDBEQ did not aocount for pre-existing cancer risk in the arca, nor did it perfurm
an analysis of huw Formosn Plastics’ cancer-causing emissions will contribule lo cumulative
cancer risk in the surrounding area, 25 recommended by EPA in the Nalional Air Toxics
Avsesyment,

158.  Louisiana’s Toxic Air Pollutanl Ambient Standards certainly do not reflect or
address this new scicnce. Al mosl, they include anmial exposure standards, though some
chemicals only have 8-hour standards for acute exposurs (i.c., n-Hexune, Propionaldehyde, and
Ammonia). See LAC 33:IIL5112, Tuble §1.2. Many of these standards arc based o oulduled
information thut does not represent the hest available svicnee, See id, ot Historical Note (showing
last wmendment in Dec. 2007). Gencrally, EPA's IRTS values, reflected in the National Air
Toxies Assessment, represent lifelime risk, 1., daily inhalation exposure over 70 yeurs, For (his
reason, it s eritical at LNIQ require Formasa Plastics (o use the RIS cancer assessment vatues
when conducting its full analysis,

159, LDEQ did nol unalyz Ihé Tong-term cancer risk poscd by Formosa Plastics'
cthylene oxide emissions.

160. LDEQ’s relinnce on the Lowisiana Tumor Registry W allempt (o discredit PA’S
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National Air Toxics Assessment for cthylenc oxide or (o ussess cancer risk from toxic pollutants
is misleading and inappropriale.

161, The Lovisiana Tumor Registry data has limiled use aad the dota cannot be used to
delermine cancer Hisk from a specific exposure in an areq,

162, LDEQ'srcvicw of (he Lovisiana Tumar Registry data is scicntifically unsound
hecause it does nol aceount for ethylene axide cxposure and inslend aysumes tat potential
enposure to health hazards is resiricled Lo (he houndaries of pre-defined, nd irrcgularly shaped
census fracls,

163, LD review of the Louisians Tumor Registey data is also scicntifically
unsound hecause it fails to control Lot olher [actors that influence cancer rates or the latency
period for cancers associated with clhiyleng oxide exposure, among other reasons,

164. LDEQ's reference (o nanwally occurring levels of ethylene oxide ereated by the
human budy has no bearing, on the IRIS risk value for ethylens oxidle, which quantifies cancer
risk above background levels inelueding endogenous levels of cthylenc oxide produced by the
human body.

165,  Lven if LDIQ’s reliance on the Lowisiwma Tumor Registry in this context was
sutzichow appiopriate, LDEQ acknowledged el the data does nat address white blood eell
cancels such as non-Hodgkin lymphoma, myeloma, and lymphocytic leukemin, cancer risks to
which EPA found ethylene oxide significantly contributes,

166. 'the Texas Council on nviconmental Quality’s recommended cthylene oxide risk
factor (hat LDGQ refergnces for suppont is not based vn independenl, peer-reviewed scicnec.

Monituring

167. 'Ihe Permits do not include [enceline air quatity monitoring requircments along its
eastern property boundaty—emissions of 1,Jhutadicnc, vinyl acctalc, cthylens oxide, and
benzene. Instend, 1.0RC impermissibly rclics on 4 L Jurmes Purish Council Resolution that the
Parish can rescind at al;)r time, The Permil states that 'ormasa Plastics must *[¢lomply wilh he
air quality monitoring provisions set forth in Resolution 19+07 of the St Jsmes Parigh Couneil,”
''he resolution ducs not establish a deadling by which Formosa must install and operate the
fenecling moniloring, There is no requirement that Formosy submit its [enceline monitoring
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ceports to LDLQ, and no provision requiring (he Purish to make the repoits availablc to LDEQ or
the public.

168,  LDEQ claims thal it will requirc Farmosa Plastics to place monitors slong
portion of its property hmt the Permits contain no such requizement.

169, LDIQ did not requitc Continuous Entissions Monitors (CkMS)-~-which dircetly
measurcs cmissions—[or all sources where CRMS is availablc.

170.  CIMS arc necessary to assure compliance wilh emissians limits, and to make
permits enforceable by (he public,

171, Inslond, LDEQ relied upon calenlations as a proxy for selual emissions, These
caleululions are based on nuimerous process assumplions (such us process rates, stream
compositions, Temperaturcs, prossures, geometry parameters and the like) that are neither
verifiable nor ullimately enforceahle. Kurther, the numcrous process ussumptions ave not
provided o the public.

172 In purlivulur, the faifure to requirc CEMS where possible renders certain permit
conditiuns unen{urceable, such as the following Lovisiana Air Emission Permit General
Condition provided n each of the proposed Tillo V permils suling, “Tailure to install, properly
uperate, and/or maintain all proposed conlrol smeasures and/or equipment as specified in Lo
application and supplomental information shall be considercd  violation of the permil and LAC
33:1L.50L." LAC 3311331, Table 1, L.

173.  LDEQ failed to provide u reasonable mtionale for failing to require CEMS lur
various combustion sources.

174, The Title V permits do not require slack (ests wilh e required frequency where
CEMS are not available.

175, The Tille V permils da not contain conditions for all assumptions used to

enlewate e potential to cmit whore there ure no requirements for CEMS.
Greethouse Gases

176.  Upon information and belicf, tho greenhouse guses llowed by the Permits excced
permitted cmissions for any new industrial source constructed in the United Stares since at least
2012,
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177 The greenhouse pascs the Permils allow, ot 13.6 million tons per yetr, dre roughly
cquivalent (o annual emissions of 3.5 average-sized coal-fired power plimls, or approximately
2.89 million passenger vehicles,

178.  The greenhouse gascs groonhouss guses would equal 6.5% of Lovisiana’s total
encry relaled emissions in 2016, or 1% of the state’s carbon emissivns from its industrial
scetor in 2016,

179, Somc of the adverse impacts associated with climale change include acee lerated
sen level visc and nssovialed human displacement, cxireme weather events, increasod ambient
temperatures, altered precipitation pattcns, occan ucidification, and loss of habital and speties,

180, Oreenhouse gas-induced climate change effects are partioularly observahle in
coustal 1.owisiana, which is sufering iremendaus land loss duc (o yéa level rise, increascd storm
intensity, and flooding,

181, LNFQ) failed to asscss the climate-related impacts of the greenhouse gas
cmissions that it authorized Formosa 1o emit.

182, LDEQ failed to consider the social costs avsuciuled with the gicenhouse gasoy fhat
it authorized Formosa Plustics o emit.

183, T.NRQ has also failed lo cunsider the comulative climale-related impacts and
social costs of the greenbiouse gases it has authorized Formasa Plastics to cmit when udded to
other past, prosent, and farcsecablo lurge sources of greenhousc gascs in (e slale.

Historic Burial Sites of Farmerly Ensluved Persons

184. Tnits Busis ol Decision, LDEQ concluded that it had avoided adverse ellsels
the maxinum extent possible on bural siles at the Chemical Complex that conlain or might have
contuined the remains of peopls once englaved on the antebellum plantutions that oceupicd the
same site.

185, TFormasa Plastics initially voncluded, in its first Environmental Assessment
Statement, that there were no burdel or other historical siles presént on the property that could
cncumber irs construction plans, Bul in July 2018, an independent researcher provided maps that

indicated the locations of al Leust two burial sites.
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18G,  After leaming of the independent evidence ol burial sites, Formosa Plastics’
attomcy cmuiled (he state Allomey General’s office, which reached out to the State Division of
Archagology on Formos Plastics’ behalf. Formosa Plastics’ attamcy wished to avert the “very
difficult” burden on Formosa Plastios of ullering il vile plun W avoid building on top ol any
burial sites of formerly enslaved persons, shonld they be uneaithed. Formosa Ilastics’ attomcy
asked if the stare could simply issuc a permit to cxhume any remains “quickly, within duys,” W
allow onsite activitics to move shead, presumubly prior (0 identifying the remaing and attempting
to notify any doscondunls,

187, Tormosa Plastics then undertaok follow-up archacological investigations af the
site. LIRQ relied on the Division of Archacology's approval ol these reporls, in which Formosa
Plastics' consultani claimed thal aay burial grounds in arcas slated for construction likely had
freen destroyed by previous activity on the sile, and (et intacl buriad sites discovered away from
construction simply could be fenced off

188,  LDEQ never provided copies of the indcpendent rescarcher’s maps and findings,
Formosa Pluslies’ archneological repores, or any of the related correspondence between state
olficials and ormosa I’lastics’ attorcys and contraclors, as parl of the publicly uvailuble permil
record on EDMS, nor, on infurmution and beliel, were they available on any ather public intcrnct
site, RISE 8t, James was unawara of the contents of these records during the official publiv
commenl period.

189.  Indccd, Rormosa Plastics did nol even submil its final survey of the burial site
bencath or near the Chemicul Complex's proposed utility plant uatil after LDEQ had relcased the
dralt Permits and hegan the public comment period. The report's elease was nearly 6 monlhs
after Formosa Plastics last Environmental Assessment Statement diseussing cultural resource
issues.

190,  RISE St, Jumos discovered (he [ull sel of these documents anly after its anorneys
completed public records requests,

191, RISE SL James's membership is predominantly comprised of African-American
residents of SL James Paeish, some nf whom trace their ancestry to persons who were enslaved in

the ver Y same arca.
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192, On December 18,2019, RISE St James submined o comment letter to LDEQ,
oullining its discovery of the state's und Furmosa Plastics” handling of the burial siles issue,
IISE St. Yames deseribed its strong interest, as a group represenling ures residents descended
[rom the victims of slavery, in how [he stule und Formosa Plastics conducted the asscysment of
risks 1o burial siles om (he Chemical Complex proporty. RISE SL Jumes xplained the need for
alleeted local comniunitics fo be consulted in (hal process.

193.  RISE S. Jumes expressed its concern that more burial siles mery ¢xist in the area
that Formoss Plustics’ praject could damage, and (hal the Formosa Plpstics’ reports may not be
complete, Indeed, it would be against Formosa Plastics” economic interest to conduct a full
rigorous study of the silc o cnsure (haw any impacts on cultural resources would be avoided t
the maximum extent possible.

194, I3ut prior to issuing the Peomils, LIKQ failed to respand to RISE SL Jumes's
comment lexter or to consull wilh RISE St James, its membership, other arca rosidenls or
scholars, or cven (he slule ol 1ovisinna’s Stavery Ancestral Bucial Grounds Preservation
Commission, about (heir interests in the arca or potential knowledge ol cultural resources onsite.
Ruther, I.IDRQ simply deferred to review of Formosa Plastics’ owin surveys.

Cost-henefit Analysis

195, LDEQ’s cost;hcncﬁt analysis (uls Lo account for any costs that would be burne
by the surronnding community and beyond,

196. LDEQ's tmalysis (nils t necount for the negative elfeel the Chemical Complex
would have on property values in the arca,

197.  LDEQ’s analysis Lails {0 consider the negative cffect the Chemicn] Complex
would have on the aren of Welecome immediately adjncent (v Formos Plastics” site and other
ureus o the parish in Paulina snd Convent that the Parish designated in its land uso plan a3
“Residential Grow(h."

198, LDEQ's cost-henefit analysis fails to include cnvironmental or public health costs
of harmfal pollutants assovinied with Formosa Plastics’ emissions and olher pollution associted
with plastic manufheturing.,

199, 1.NEQ failed to consider (he Gt that African American communitics in the arex
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ol the Formosa Plastics site arc already over-burdened with air pollution, and would
disproportionalely beur the adverse health eifects of Formosa Plaslics emissions.
200. The henefits listed by LDEQ are inllated and unsupported.
Avoidunce of Adverse Environmental Effects
201, 1L.0Q failed to consider whether (he potential and real adveise cavironmental
eltects of the Chemical Complex's air smissions “have been minimized to the maxinum extent
poussible as its public (cusles duly requires. Instead, LDEQ considered only the elleets of the qir
cmissions in (he conlext ol analyzing mitigating measurcs (i.c.. wheler (here were mitigating
measures (ht would offer more protection to (he environmental (han the facility as proposed
withaut unduly curtailing non-enviconmental henefits). By doing this, LDEQ fuiled to determine
whelher (Lic harmful effects of the air cmissions “have been minimized 10 the maximune extent
possible.”
Alternative Projects
202, LDEQ claims that it considered & “no build" ullermative and an alternative that
enluils approving some of 1he proposcd plants but rejected this alternative without providing any
evidence in the record o support its conclusions.
ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR
203, The PSD Permil thut LDEQ issued t Formosa 'fastics fails o meet Lovisiona’s
PSD requirements under LAC:33.1ILK. 1, the | .ouisiana 811, and 42 T.S.C. § 7475(a)(3) because
Formosa Plastics failed (v make (he following requisite demonstrations under LAC
3XIILS09.K.1:
a. Formosa Plusticy frled to demonstrate that the cinissions from il plurmed
Chemical Complex will not cause or contibuls to wir poltation in violation of
the Mz 24-hour NAAQS;
b. Formosa Plastics (niled ta demonstrate that the emissions [rom ils planned
Chemical Complex will not cause or contribute 0 air pollution in violation of
(he N2 1<hour NAAQS: andl
¢. Formosa Plastics [uiled o demonstrate that the cmissions from its plmned
Chemical Complex will not cause or contribule W air pollution in violation of
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ihc maximum allowabls incresse of PMzs over (he baseting concentration for
the PMzs 24-hour standard.

204, ‘The I'SD Permit that LDEQ issued (o Furmosy Plastivs [bils lo meet [,ovisiana’s
PSD requirements and (he Lovisiana SIP because Formosa Plastics failed comply with
mandatory air qualily modeling cequirements for estimating ambicnt concentrations in Appendix
W ol40 CF.R. pt. §1, 25 required by LAC 33:IIL509.L.1.

205. LDEQ's use of'its Signilicunt Impact. Levels Policy to disimiss Formosa P'lastics’
conlribution 10 NAAQS exceedances and increment consumplion violntes LAC:3.ITLK 1, the
Louisiana $11°, and 42 U.S.C. § T475(0)(3).

206,  LDEQsuse of its Significant Impact Levels Poliey to dismiss Formosa Plastivs®
sonlribution to NAAQS cxeecdances and incremenl consumption is arbitrary ond capricious,
unstpporred by the record, and an abuse of LDEQ's discrstion in this matter.

207, LOHQ's finding that cmissions [rom Formusn Plastics’ planned Chemical
Complex will not cause of conlribute 1o a vialation of a NAAQS or any ambicnt ir quality
standard is arbilrary and capricious and not supported in the record,

208.  LDEQ's finding lhal the permils uvoid air quality impacts that could adverscly
affeet human health or the cnvironment is achitrary and capricious and not supported in the
record,

209, L.DEQs deeision to issuc the Title V/Parl 70 permils violules JLAC 33:11L.307.A.3
heeause those permils fil Lo incorporate alt federally applicable requircments for cach cmissiony
unit. af. (he source.

200, LDEQ's decision 1o issue the Title V/Part 70 permits violates LAC 33:I1L504.C.6
bevause (hose permits fail o incorporate sufficicnt terms and conditions Lo cnsure complisuve
with all state and fedcrally applicable air qualily requirements and stundards o l’ne'source.

211, LDEQ's decision fo issue the Tille V/Parl 70 permits violates LAC 33:011.507.11
because those permils [ail W include compliance certification, testing, monitoring, reporting, and
rocordkeopiny requirements sulficient to assure compliance with the terms and conditions of the

permit o required by 40 C.K.R. § 70.6(a)(3).
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212, LDEQ cannol show by n prepanderance of the cvidence thut it hay met siate and
[ederal Tille V/Part 70 requircments under LAC 33:TMLS07.10.1; 40 C.1'R. § 70.6(c)(1).

213. Inlight ol the errors detailed in paragraphs 203-212, LDEQ was required to deny
the Permils parsuant to LAC 33:11.519.

214, 1D decision to issuc the Permits in Yight of the errors detailed in paragraphs
203-212 was arbitrary and capricious,

215.  LDBQ's decision to issue the Fomits was made upon untawlul procedure because
he agency failed to provide reasonable responses (o public cominents,

216, LDEQ fuiled t [ollow te will and intent of the art, IX, § 1 of the ] ouisiana
Constitution and te 1owisiana Knvivonmental Qualily Act in making its determination fo issue
the Permits, in violation of La. R.S. § 30:2014.A(4),

217, LEQ violated arlicle IX, § 1 of the Louisiana Constitution by failing to avoid to
the maximmm cxtent possible the potentinl and real adversc environmental elleets of the
Chemical Complex.

218.  LDEQ's finding thal the potential and real adverse effeets of the Chemical
Complex huve besn avaided to the maximum cxlent possible is arbitrary and capricious.

219, LDEQ vialated articlo IX, § L of the Lowisiana Constitution becanse il fuiled
demonstiate on the vecord thal it considered the real and potential cumulative ndverse impuicts of
Formosa Plastics' toxic cmissions in combination with cxisting permitted cmissiony [or the area,

220, LDE() violated article IX, § 1 of (he Louisiana Constitation hecause it failed to
demonstrate on the record that it considered the real and potential cffects of Formosu Plastics’
cthylene oxide emissions,

221, LDFQ vinlated article IX, § 1 of (he Lovisime Constitution becausc it failed to
demonsirate on the record that it considered (he polential and real adverse cavirowmental clfeels
ol Formosa Plastics’ greenhouse gas emissions,

222, LDEQ violated article 1X, § 1 of (he Lovisiang Constilution becausc its decision
(0 fssue the Permits would disproportionalely impact communitics of color.

223, LDEQ violuted article 1X, § 1 of the Louisiana Constilution, including its legal
obligation to provide active and affirmative protection Lo the public, in failing to adequately
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avoid nnd minimize harm to potential burial sites of formerly cnslaved persons on the proposed
site of the Chemieal Complex, Kiling to Jisclose relevant information to the public prir lo the
commenl period, wd/or filing to consult with RISE St. James or other persuns primarily
inlerested in the presetvation of the remains of formerly enslaved persons buried within the
propused Chemical Complex’s site.

224. LDEQ violated urlicle IX, § 1 of the Louisiana Constitution becausc it filed to
demonstrate on the record that it considered allernalive projeety, miligative measures, of
conditions that would lessen rea) and potential harm to communitics and workers posed by (he
operation of the Chemical Complex.

225, LEQ's finding that there are no allernative projects, mitigative mcasurcs, o
conditions that would lessen (he reul and potential harms to communitics and workers posed by
the operation of (he Chermical Complex is atbitrary and capricious.

226, LDTQ’s finding that the social and ceconomie benefils of the Chemical Comples
wauld outweigh the adverse impacts of the Chemical Complex is arhitrary and capricious and
vinlates avticle IX, § 1 ol the Louisiuna Constitution becanse the ageney failed to demonsizule on
the record that it conyidered the social, health, and environmental impacls (o communilies and
workers,

227, 1.DEQ violated article IX, § 1 of the J.ouisiana Constitation because it failed to
demanstratc o the record (hat it conducted o cast benefit analysis that considered (he adverse
cosls ol Farmosa Plasties” precnhouse gas cmissions,

228, LDEQ's issuance of the Permit has prejudiced substantinl rights of Petitioners
because 101 s decision is in violation of conslitutivnul or stalulory provisions.

229.  LDEQ’sissuance of the Pomil huy prejudiced substantial rights of Petitioners
hecause | DEQ’s decision is arbilrury and capricions

230, T,NGQ’s Permit issuance has prejudiced Polilioners” substuntiul rights, because

(hve deciston is not supported by a prepunderunce ol evidence.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WIEREFORE, Petitioners vespeci{ully request that this Gour,
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o Vpeute LDEQ's decision Lo issue the Permits, enjoin all aettvity authorized
pursugat to the Permits, and remand the marer (o (he ogency for further consideration consistent

with an order from this Court; and

b, Award all other relief the Court finds propex,

Respectfully submitsed this 14th duy ol February, 2020 by,

LD

Corinne Van Dalen (La. Bar No. 21173)
Michae! Brown (La, Bur No. 35444)
Earthjustice

900 Camp Streel

New Qrleans, LA 70130

T: 415.283.2335

F: 415.217.2040

eVl Dearthjustice.ur
mlbrown@carthjustice.org

Counsel for Petitioners

PLEASE SERVE!

Dy Chuck Brown, Secretary

Louisiana Departmcnt of Envivonmental Quality
602 N. Fifth Stre¢t, Galvez Building

Baton Rouge, LA 70802
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